
Serra Cooperative Library System 
c/o SCLC ▪ 222 E. Harvard St. ▪ Glendale, CA 91205 

Phone: 626-359-6111 
www.serralib.org 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Thursday, October 10, 2024 

9:30 – 10:30 am 

Meeting Location: 
San Diego Central Library, Mary Hollis Clark Conference Center 

330 Park Blvd., San Diego, CA  92101

Via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87801581481?pwd=bpW3FxfUCNzT8IBS5TDQWarujKtoIa.1 

Meeting ID: 878 0158 1481 
Passcode: 530315 

Alternate Meeting Locations: 
Camarena Memorial Library, 850 Encinas Ave., Calexico, CA 92331 

Agenda 

All items may be considered for action. 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call Lizeth Legaspi 

2. Public Comment Lizeth Legaspi 
Opportunity for any guest or member of the public to address the Committee on any 
item of Serra business not represented on the current agenda. 

3. Consent Calendar Lizeth Legaspi 
a. Minutes of the August 15, 2024, Executive Committee regular meeting

(ACTION)

4. Adoption of the Agenda Lizeth Legaspi 

5. Budget Status Report for FY 2024/25 Andy Beck 
(DISCUSSION)

6. Discussion of Future Membership Dues Andy Beck 
(ACTION)

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87801581481?pwd=bpW3FxfUCNzT8IBS5TDQWarujKtoIa.1


7. Other Lizeth Legaspi 

8. What’s New at Your Library Lizeth Legaspi 

9. Adjournment Lizeth Legaspi 

2



ACTION ITEMS 

Meeting: ___Serra Executive Committee Meeting______________________________ 

Date: ______October 10, 2024_____________________________________________ 

Library: _______________________________________________________________ 

Name: ________________________________________________________________

Signature: _______________________ 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Date:____________________________ 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

3



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Thursday, August 15, 2024 

9:30 – 10:30 am 

Meeting Location: 
Coronado Public Library 

640 Orange Ave, Coronado, CA 92118 

Alternate Meeting Locations: 
Camarena Memorial Library, 850 Encinas Ave., Calexico, CA 92331 

Minutes draft 
Attendance 
Briley, Shaun – Coronado 
Cronk, Robert – San Diego Public 
DiMento, Cathy (CJ) – Oceanside 
Legaspi, Lizeth – Camarena  
Donna Ohr – San Diego County  
Smithson, Suzanne – Carlsbad 

Other 
Beck, Andy – SCLC 
Powers, Christine – SCLC 
Snodgrass, Nerissa – SCLC 
Walker, Wayne – SCLC 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call Lizeth Legaspi 
Meeting called to order at 9:34 am.

2. Public Comment Lizeth Legaspi
Opportunity for any guest or member of the public to address the Committee on
any item of Serra business not represented on the current agenda.
None.

3. Consent Calendar Lizeth Legaspi 
a. Minutes of the May 16, 2024, Executive Committee meeting.

(ACTION)
MSP (Briley/Smithson) to pass the Consent Calendar, without changes.
4 yes, 0 no, 2 abstain

4. Adoption of the Agenda Lizeth Legaspi 
Chair passed the agenda as presented, without objection.

Serra Cooperative Library System 
c/o SCLC  222 E. Harvard St.  Glendale, CA 91205 

Phone: 626-359-6111 
www.serralib.org 

EC Agenda Item 3a

4

http://www.serralib.org/


5. Budget Status Report for FY 2023/24 Andy Beck 
(DISCUSSION) 
Controller Andy Beck presented the Budget Status Report for FY 2023/24, 
reflecting reconciled bank statements through August 31, 2023.  

6. Discussion of Future Membership Dues Christine Powers / 
(ACTION) Andy Beck 
The committee postponed voting on this item due to Chula Vista's absence. They 
plan to revisit the item and proceed with the vote at the next meeting.  

7. Other Lizeth Legaspi 
None.

8. Adjournment Lizeth Legaspi 
MSP (Cronk/Smithson) to adjourn meeting at 9:46 am.

5



Serra Cooperative Library System 
c/o SCLC ▪ 222 E. Harvard St. ▪ Glendale, CA 91205 

Phone: 626-2359-6111 
www.serralib.org 

EC Agenda Item 5 

DATE:  October 10, 2024 
TO: Serra Executive Committee 
FROM: Andy Beck, Controller, Serra/SCLC 

SUBJECT: Budget Status Report for FY 2024/25 (DISCUSSION) 

BACKGROUND: The Budget Status Report for Fiscal Year 2024/25 is attached for 
review and reflects reconciled bank statements through August 31, 2024. 

For revenues, membership dues of $65,463 were recorded as financial resources 
available for use. Other revenues include communication and delivery of $23,394, 
system administration of $8,854, and LINK+ reimbursements of $65,463, which were 
recorded as respective expenses were recognized. 

Expenses include communications and delivery of $54,447, other services of $1,492, 
and administration of $9,031. These expenses do not reflect what was paid but amounts 
that were incurred. 

As of August 31, 2024, the System has a surplus of $42,474 and cash balance of 
$866,671. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational item 

EXHIBIT:  
a. Budget Status Report
b. Bank Statements July – August 2024

6



Serra Cooperative Library System

Budget Status Report

August 31, 2024

 FY24/25  Prior Year  FY24/25 % %

 Budget  Actuals Actuals Balance Unrealized Realized Notes

REVENUE

CLSA communications & delivery 201,391$            287,474$         23,394$              177,997$            88% 12%

CLSA system administration 27,512                53,149              8,854  18,658                68% 32%

Reimbursement (LINK+) 145,000              70,805              9,299  135,701              94% 6% Imperial County libraries

Membership dues 65,463                64,221              65,463                ‐  0% 100%

Investment income 1,000  1,694                434  566  57% 43%

Total revenues 440,366$            477,342$         107,444$            332,922$            76% 24%

EXPENDITURES

Communications and delivery

Delivery  1,000$                6,661$              37$   963$   96% 4%

E‐resources 125,688              121,828            20,948                104,740              83% 17% Overdrive; Flipster

Resource sharing 345,000              216,627            32,693                312,307              91% 9% LINK+

Audit Fees 6,625  6,300                ‐  6,625  100% 0%

Office supplies 1,600  2,428                267  1,333  83% 17%

Telecommunications 4,200  4,436                502  3,698  88% 12%

Total communication and delivery 484,113              358,280            54,447                429,666              89% 11%

Other services

Museum Month sponsorship 5,000  5,000                ‐  5,000  100% 0%

Discover & Go sponsorship 21,450                4,410                1,492  19,958                93% 7%

Youth Services Professional Development 4,000  3,705                ‐  4,000  100% 0%

Adult Services Professional Development 4,000  3,482                ‐  4,000  100% 0%

Total other services 34,450                16,597              1,492  32,958                96% 4%

Administration

Administration expense 53,121                53,149              8,854  44,267                83% 17% Amortized

Meetings/conferences/travel 1,800  1,633                177  1,623  90% 10%

Other ‐  13  ‐  ‐ 

Total administration 54,921                54,795              9,031  45,890                84% 16%

Total expenditures 573,484$            429,672$         64,970$              508,514$            89% 11%

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (133,118)$          47,671$           42,474$              (175,592)$          132% ‐32%

Bank balance 866,671$           

FY2024/25 CLSA Communications & Delivery (Restricted)

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

Inter Library Loan (3) ‐$   110,047$         ‐$   110,047$           

‐$   110,047$         ‐$   110,047$           

FY2023/24 CLSA Communications & Delivery (Restricted)

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

Inter Library Loan (3) 56,771$             ‐$                  (15,644)$             41,127$             

56,771$             ‐$                  (15,644)$             41,127$             

FY2022/23 CLSA Communications & Delivery (Restricted)

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

Inter Library Loan (3) 34,874$             ‐$                  (7,750)$               27,124$             

34,874$             ‐$                  (7,750)$               27,124$             

ACCOUNT BALANCES

CLSA FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR 2024‐25

FISCAL YEAR 2023‐24

FISCAL YEAR 2022‐23

EC Agenda Item 5a

7



EC Agenda Item 5b

8



9



Customer service information

1.888.BUSINESS (1.888.287.4637)

bankofamerica.com

Bank of America, N.A.
P.O. Box 25118
Tampa, FL 33622-5118

SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM
GENERAL ACCOUNT
254 N LAKE AVE
BOX 874
PASADENA, CA  91101

P.O. Box 15284

Wilmington, DE 19850

 PULL: E   CYCLE: 47   SPEC: E   DELIVERY: E   TYPE:    IMAGE: B   BC: CA8 Page 1 of 6

Your Business Interest Checking 
Preferred Rewards for Bus Platinum Honors
for July 1, 2024 to July 31, 2024 Account number: 0011 3270 6730

SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM     GENERAL ACCOUNT     

Account summary
Beginning balance on July 1, 2024 $981,290.72

Deposits and other credits 4.48

Withdrawals and other debits -0.00

Checks -611,216.08

Service fees -0.00

Ending balance on July 31, 2024 $370,079.12

Annual Percentage Yield Earned this statement period: 0.01%.

Interest Paid Year To Date: $56.68.

# of deposits/credits: 1

# of withdrawals/debits: 4

# of days in cycle: 31

Average ledger balance: $528,609.15

Julietta Hakobyan
818.824.8750
julietta.hakobyan@bofa.com

10



SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   July 1, 2024 to July 31, 2024

Page 2 of 6

IMPORTANT INFORMATION:
BANK DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS

How to Contact Us - You may call us at the telephone number listed on the front of this statement.

Updating your contact information - We encourage you to keep your contact information up-to-date. This includes address,
email and phone number. If your information has changed, the easiest way to update it is by visiting the Help & Support tab of
Online Banking.

Deposit agreement - When you opened your account, you received a deposit agreement and fee schedule and agreed that your
account would be governed by the terms of these documents, as we may amend them from time to time. These documents are
part of the contract for your deposit account and govern all transactions relating to your account, including all deposits and
withdrawals. Copies of both the deposit agreement and fee schedule which contain the current version of the terms and
conditions of your account relationship may be obtained at our financial centers.

Electronic transfers: In case of errors or questions about your electronic transfers - If you think your statement or receipt is
wrong or you need more information about an electronic transfer (e.g., ATM transactions, direct deposits or withdrawals,
point-of-sale transactions) on the statement or receipt, telephone or write us at the address and number listed on the front of
this statement as soon as you can. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the FIRST statement on
which the error or problem appeared.

- Tell us your name and account number.
- Describe the error or transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you believe there is an error

or why you need more information.
- Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error.

For consumer accounts used primarily for personal, family or household purposes, we will investigate your complaint and will
correct any error promptly. If we take more than 10 business days (10 calendar days if you are a Massachusetts customer) (20
business days if you are a new customer, for electronic transfers occurring during the first 30 days after the first deposit is
made to your account) to do this, we will provisionally credit your account for the amount you think is in error, so that you will
have use of the money during the time it will take to complete our investigation.

For other accounts, we investigate, and if we find we have made an error, we credit your account at the conclusion of our
investigation.

Reporting other problems - You must examine your statement carefully and promptly. You are in the best position to discover
errors and unauthorized transactions on your account. If you fail to notify us in writing of suspected problems or an
unauthorized transaction within the time period specified in the deposit agreement (which periods are no more than 60 days
after we make the statement available to you and in some cases are 30 days or less), we are not liable to you and you agree to
not make a claim against us, for the problems or unauthorized transactions.

Direct deposits - If you have arranged to have direct deposits made to your account at least once every 60 days from the same
person or company, you may call us to find out if the deposit was made as scheduled. You may also review your activity online
or visit a financial center for information.

 © 2024 Bank of America Corporation

11



SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   July 1, 2024 to July 31, 2024

Your checking account

Page 3 of 6

Deposits and other credits
Date Description Amount

07/31/24 Interest Earned 4.48

Total deposits and other credits $4.48

Checks 
Date Check # Amount Date Check # Amount

07/09/24 40425 -600,000.00 07/15/24 40427 -630.00

07/09/24 40426 -57.73 07/11/24 40428 -10,528.35

Total checks -$611,216.08

Total # of checks 4

Daily ledger balances
Date Balance ($) Date Balance($) Date Balance ($)

07/01 981,290.72 07/11 370,704.64 07/31 370,079.12

07/09 381,232.99 07/15 370,074.64

12



This page intentionally left blank

SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   July 1, 2024 to July 31, 2024

Page 4 of 6

13



SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   July 1, 2024 to July 31, 2024

Page 5 of 6

Check images     
Account number: 0011 3270 6730       
Check number: 40425   !  Amount:  $600,000.00

Check number: 40426   !  Amount:  $57.73

Check number: 40427   !  Amount:  $630.00

Check number: 40428   !  Amount:  $10,528.35

14



This page intentionally left blank

SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   July 1, 2024 to July 31, 2024

Page 6 of 6

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



Customer service information

1.888.BUSINESS (1.888.287.4637)

bankofamerica.com

Bank of America, N.A.
P.O. Box 25118
Tampa, FL 33622-5118

SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM
GENERAL ACCOUNT
254 N LAKE AVE
BOX 874
PASADENA, CA  91101

P.O. Box 15284

Wilmington, DE 19850

 PULL: E   CYCLE: 47   SPEC: E   DELIVERY: E   TYPE:    IMAGE: B   BC: CA2 Page 1 of 6

Your Business Interest Checking 
Preferred Rewards for Bus Platinum Honors
for August 1, 2024 to August 31, 2024 Account number: 0011 3270 6730

SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM     GENERAL ACCOUNT     

Account summary
Beginning balance on August 1, 2024 $370,079.12

Deposits and other credits 2.95

Withdrawals and other debits -0.00

Checks -21,705.77

Service fees -0.00

Ending balance on August 31, 2024 $348,376.30

Annual Percentage Yield Earned this statement period: 0.01%.

Interest Paid Year To Date: $59.63.

# of deposits/credits: 1

# of withdrawals/debits: 2

# of days in cycle: 31

Average ledger balance: $348,381.69

Julietta Hakobyan
818.824.8750
julietta.hakobyan@bofa.com

22



SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   August 1, 2024 to August 31, 2024

Page 2 of 6

IMPORTANT INFORMATION:
BANK DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS

How to Contact Us - You may call us at the telephone number listed on the front of this statement.

Updating your contact information - We encourage you to keep your contact information up-to-date. This includes address,
email and phone number. If your information has changed, the easiest way to update it is by visiting the Help & Support tab of
Online Banking.

Deposit agreement - When you opened your account, you received a deposit agreement and fee schedule and agreed that your
account would be governed by the terms of these documents, as we may amend them from time to time. These documents are
part of the contract for your deposit account and govern all transactions relating to your account, including all deposits and
withdrawals. Copies of both the deposit agreement and fee schedule which contain the current version of the terms and
conditions of your account relationship may be obtained at our financial centers.

Electronic transfers: In case of errors or questions about your electronic transfers - If you think your statement or receipt is
wrong or you need more information about an electronic transfer (e.g., ATM transactions, direct deposits or withdrawals,
point-of-sale transactions) on the statement or receipt, telephone or write us at the address and number listed on the front of
this statement as soon as you can. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the FIRST statement on
which the error or problem appeared.

- Tell us your name and account number.
- Describe the error or transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you believe there is an error

or why you need more information.
- Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error.

For consumer accounts used primarily for personal, family or household purposes, we will investigate your complaint and will
correct any error promptly. If we take more than 10 business days (10 calendar days if you are a Massachusetts customer) (20
business days if you are a new customer, for electronic transfers occurring during the first 30 days after the first deposit is
made to your account) to do this, we will provisionally credit your account for the amount you think is in error, so that you will
have use of the money during the time it will take to complete our investigation.

For other accounts, we investigate, and if we find we have made an error, we credit your account at the conclusion of our
investigation.

Reporting other problems - You must examine your statement carefully and promptly. You are in the best position to discover
errors and unauthorized transactions on your account. If you fail to notify us in writing of suspected problems or an
unauthorized transaction within the time period specified in the deposit agreement (which periods are no more than 60 days
after we make the statement available to you and in some cases are 30 days or less), we are not liable to you and you agree to
not make a claim against us, for the problems or unauthorized transactions.

Direct deposits - If you have arranged to have direct deposits made to your account at least once every 60 days from the same
person or company, you may call us to find out if the deposit was made as scheduled. You may also review your activity online
or visit a financial center for information.

 © 2024 Bank of America Corporation

23



SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   August 1, 2024 to August 31, 2024

Your checking account

Page 3 of 6

Deposits and other credits
Date Description Amount

08/30/24 Interest Earned 2.95

Total deposits and other credits $2.95

Checks 
Date Check # Amount Date Check # Amount

08/02/24 40402 -255.77 08/01/24 40429* -21,450.00

Total checks -$21,705.77

Total # of checks 2

*   There is a gap in sequential check numbers

Daily ledger balances
Date Balance ($) Date Balance($) Date Balance ($)

08/01 348,629.12 08/02 348,373.35 08/30 348,376.30

24



This page intentionally left blank

SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   August 1, 2024 to August 31, 2024

Page 4 of 6

25



SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   August 1, 2024 to August 31, 2024

Page 5 of 6

Check images     
Account number: 0011 3270 6730       
Check number: 40402   !  Amount:  $255.77

Check number: 40429   !  Amount:  $21,450.00

26



This page intentionally left blank

SERRA COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SYSTEM   !   Account # 0011 3270 6730   !   August 1, 2024 to August 31, 2024

Page 6 of 6

27



Serra Cooperative Library System 
c/o SCLC ▪ 222 E. Harvard St. ▪ Glendale, CA 91205 

Phone: 626-2359-6111 
www.serralib.org 

AC Agenda Item 6 

DATE:  October 10, 2024 
TO: Serra Executive Committee 
FROM: Andy Beck, Controller, Serra/SCLC 

SUBJECT: Discussion of Future Membership Dues (ACTION) 

BACKGROUND: During the February 15, 2024, Council meeting, it was revealed that 
membership dues for a member with a greater population was lower than members with 
a lesser population. After investigating the matter, based on the previously adopted 
membership dues formula, membership dues were calculated correctly; however, based 
on this concern raised by members, it is recommended that the membership dues 
formula needs be revised.  

The previously adopted membership dues formula is as follows: 

Population under 20,000 Population x 2% 
Population 55,000 Population x 2% + $1,500 
Population 200,000 Population x 3% + $1,500 
Population over 200,000 Population x 1% + $1,500 

When a member’s population is over 200,000, the per capita rate decreases from 3% to 
1% for the entire population, causing aforementioned issue. To correct this issue, when 
a member graduates from one tier to the next tier, the per capita rate per population 
within the tier should not change. Based on this methodology, the following dues rate 
structure is proposed: 

Population up to 100,000 Population x 3.0% + $1,000 
Population between 100,001 – 200,000 Above + (Population – 100,000) x 2.5% 
Population between 200,001 – 1,000,000 Above + (Population – 200,000) x 1.0% 
Population over 1,000,000 Above = $14,500 

The population threshold of 100,000, 200,000, and 1,000,000, were determined based 
on the percent difference in population between one member’s population and the next 
member with a higher population. A percentage difference greater than 50% was used 
to determine the threshold. 

28



For all members, a base rate of $1,000 would be applied. In addition, for all members, a 
population rate of 3.0% would be applied to their population from 1 to 100,000; 2.5% 
would be applied to their population from 100,001 to 200,000; and 1.0% would be 
applied to their population from 200,001 to 1,000,000. No rate would be applied to any 
population count above 1 million resulting in a ceiling of $14,500. 

Additionally, it is recommended that the Administrative Council consider setting a dues 
rate for Associate Members, should a library wish to join the Cooperative as an 
Associate Member. Based on records, it looks like Associate Member dues were set at 
$500 at one point, but based on a request from a previous Associate Member, the dues 
were decreased to $350 in August 2012.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Total membership dues would increase by $1,048, if applied to the 
same population use for FY 2024/25. 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend to the Administrative Council to adopt the new 
membership dues rate or suggest a variation of the new dues structure. 

EXHIBIT: 
a. Proposed Future Membership Dues (Pro Formo for FY 2024/25)

29



Library 2023 Population

Dues Based on 

Current 

Calculation

Dues Based on 

Proposed 

Calculation Change

Brawley 27,539                  2,051$                  1,826$                  (225)$  

Camarena Memorial 38,697  2,274$                  2,161$                  (113)$  

Carlsbad 114,549                4,936$                  4,364$                  (572)$  

Chula Vista 274,784                4,248$                  7,248$                  3,000$                 

Coronado 22,150  1,943$                  1,665$                  (278)$  

El Centro 44,445                  2,389$                  2,333$                  (56)$

Escondido 149,799                5,994$                  5,245$                  (749)$  

Imperial 21,496                  1,930$                  1,645$                  (285)$  

Imperial Co 47,299                  1,973$                  2,419$                  446$

National City 60,974                  3,329$                  2,829$                  (500)$  

Oceanside 171,063                6,632$                  5,777$                  (855)$  

San Diego County 1,108,041             12,580$                14,500$                1,920$                 

San Diego Public 1,368,395             15,184$                14,500$                (684)$  

Total 3,449,231             65,463$                66,512$                1,049$                 

Serra Library Cooperative System

Proposed Future Membership Dues (Pro Forma for FY 2024/25)

EC Agenda Item 6a

30


	Serra_FY2425_EC_Agenda_10102024.pdf
	Serra_FY2425_EC_Action_Items
	Serra_FY2425_EC_Item_03a_Minutes_Draft_08152024
	Serra_FY2425_EC_Item_05_Budget_Status_Staff_Report
	Serra_FY2425_EC_Item_05a_Budget_Status_Report
	Serra_FY2425_EC_Item_05b_Budget_Status_Bank_Statements
	Serra BS 07312024
	Serra_FY2425_Bofa_Statement_07312024
	Serra BS 08302024
	Serra_FY2425_Bofa_Statement_08312024

	Serra_FY2425_EC_Item_06_Future_Membership_Dues_Staff_Report
	Serra_FY2425_EC_Item_06a_Future_Membership_Dues_Exhibit



